
 
JOHN WARD 
Director of Corporate Services 
 
Contact: Democratic Services 
Email: democraticservices@chichester.gov.uk 
 

East Pallant House 
1 East Pallant 
Chichester 
West Sussex 
PO19 1TY 
Tel: 01243 785166 
www.chichester.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
A meeting of the Cabinet will be held in the Committee Rooms, East Pallant House on 
Tuesday 1 November 2022 at 9.30 am 
 
MEMBERS: Mrs E Lintill (Chairman), Mrs S Taylor (Vice-Chairman), Mr R Briscoe, 

Mr A Dignum, Mrs P Plant, Mr A Sutton and Mr P Wilding 
 

AGENDA 
  
1   Chair's Announcements  
 The Chair will make any specific announcements for this meeting and advise of 

any late items which due to special circumstances will be given urgent 
consideration under Late Items.   

2   Approval of Minutes (Pages 1 - 6) 
 The Cabinet is requested to approve as a correct record the minutes of its meeting 

on 4 October 2022.  
3   Declarations of Interests  
 Members are requested to make any declarations of disclosable pecuniary, 

personal and/or prejudicial interests they might have in respect of matters on the 
agenda for this meeting.  

4   Public Question Time  
 In accordance with Chichester District Council’s scheme for public question time 

the Cabinet will receive any questions which have been submitted by members of 
the public in writing by noon two working days before the meeting. Each questioner 
will be given up to three minutes to ask their question. The total time allocated for 
public question time is 15 minutes subject to the Chair’s discretion to extend that 
period.  

KEY DECISIONS 
  
5   Development Management Planning Performance Agreements (Pages 7 - 11) 
 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and make the following 

resolutions: 
 
That Cabinet: 
 

a. Resolves that the Council enters into a Planning Performance 
Agreement (PPA) with Linden/Downland Graylingwell LLP in 
respect of development at Graylingwell Park; and  

b. Delegates authority to the Director of Planning and Environment 
in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning Services 
to: 

i. Enter into future proposed PPA’s across the Chichester 
Local Plan area with a value of no more than £100,000 and 

Public Document Pack



to extend or vary the terms of existing PPA’s with a value 
of no more than £100,000. 

ii. And to expend the sums received under PPAs in 
accordance with the PPAs’ terms. 

 
OTHER DECISIONS 

  
6   Land at Western End of Terminus Road, Chichester (Pages 13 - 19) 
 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendix and make the 

following resolution: 
 
That Cabinet approves the release of £20,000 from reserves to appoint a 
design team to proceed to planning and to tender for the construction of a 
car park at the western end of Terminus Road. A further report will be 
presented to Cabinet on the outcome of the tender process.  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
  
7   Financial Strategy and Plan 2023-24 to 2027-28 (Pages 21 - 53) 
 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and its appendices (including 

exempt Appendix 2) and make the following recommendations to Full Council: 
 
That the Cabinet considers and recommends to Council: 
 

a) The key financial principles and actions set out in appendix 1 of the 
5 year Financial Strategy report are approved. 

b) That the Minimum Level of Reserves level is set, following the 
recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee. 

c) That the current 5 year Financial Model detailed in appendix 2 (Part 
2) and the Resources Statement in appendix 3 to the Financial 
Strategy report be noted. 

d) That £1.457m is transferred from the General Fund Reserve to the 
Investment Risk reserve to increase the mitigation held for fair value 
adjustments for the Council’s long-term investments.  

8   Late Items  
 a) Items added to the agenda papers and made available for public 

inspection 
b) Items which the Chair has agreed should be taken as matters of urgency 

by reason of special circumstances to be reported at the meeting  
9   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 The Cabinet is asked to consider in respect of Appendix 2 to agenda item 7 and 

agenda item 10 whether the public including the press should be excluded from 
the meeting on the following ground of exemption in Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 namely Paragraph 3 (Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)) and because, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption of that information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.  
 
[Note The report and its appendices within this part of the agenda are attached for 
members of the Council and relevant only (printed on salmon paper)]  



10   Leisure Management Contract Review (Pages 55 - 58) 
 The Cabinet is requested to consider the report and make the recommendations to 

Full Council as set out in sections 2.1 and 2.2 of the report.  
 

NOTES 
 

(1) The press and public may be excluded from the meeting during any item of 
business wherever it is likely that there would be disclosure of ‘exempt information’ 
as defined in section 100A of and Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
(2) The press and public may view the report appendices which are not included with 

their copy of the agenda on the Council’s website at Chichester District Council - 
Minutes, agendas and reports unless they contain exempt information. 

 
(3) Subject to Covid-19 Risk Assessments members of the public are advised of the 

following; 
 

• Where public meetings are being held at East Pallant House in order to best 
manage the space available members of the public are in the first instance 
asked to listen to the meeting online via the council’s committee pages. 

• Where a member of the public has registered a question they will be invited 
to attend the meeting and will be issued a seat in the public gallery. 

• You are advised not to attend any face to face meeting if you have 
symptoms of Covid. 

 
(4) Subject to the provisions allowing the exclusion of the press and public, the 

photographing, filming or recording of this meeting from the public seating area is 
permitted. To assist with the management of the meeting, anyone wishing to do this 
is asked to inform the chairman of the meeting of their intentions before the meeting 
starts. The use of mobile devices for access to social media is permitted, but these 
should be switched to silent for the duration of the meeting. Those undertaking such 
activities must do so discreetly and not disrupt the meeting, for example by oral 
commentary, excessive noise, distracting movement or flash photography. Filming 
of children, vulnerable adults or members of the audience who object should be 
avoided. [Standing Order 11.3 of Chichester District Council’s Constitution] 

 
(5) A key decision means an executive decision which is likely to: 

 
• result in Chichester District Council (CDC) incurring expenditure which is, or the 

making of savings which are, significant having regard to the CDC’s budget for 
the service or function to which the decision relates  or  

 
• be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area 

comprising one or more wards in the CDC’s area or 
 

• incur expenditure, generate income, or produce savings greater than £100,000 

NON-CABINET MEMBER COUNCILLORS SPEAKING AT THE CABINET 
 
Standing Order 22.3 of Chichester District Council’s Constitution provides that members of 
the Council may, with the Chairman’s consent, speak at a committee meeting of which 

http://chichester.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://chichester.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


they are not a member, or temporarily sit and speak at the committee table on a particular 
item but shall then return to the public seating area. 
 
The Leader of the Council intends to apply this standing order at Cabinet meetings by 
requesting that members should normally seek the Chairman’s consent in writing by email 
in advance of the meeting. They should do this by noon on the Friday before the Cabinet 
meeting, outlining the substance of the matter that they wish to raise. The word normally is 
emphasised because there may be unforeseen circumstances where a member can assist 
the conduct of business by his or her contribution and where the Chairman would 
therefore retain their discretion to allow the contribution without the aforesaid notice. 



 

 
 

 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held in the Committee Rooms, East Pallant House 
on Tuesday 4 October 2022 at 9.30 am 

 
 

Members Present Mrs E Lintill (Chairman), Mrs S Taylor (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr R Briscoe, Mrs P Plant, Mr A Sutton and Mr P Wilding 
 

Members Absent Mr A Dignum 
 

In attendance by invitation   
 

Officers Present  Mrs L Baines (Democratic Services Manager), 
Mr S Ballard (Senior Environmental Protection Officer), 
Mr A Frost (Director of Planning and Environment), 
Mr P Jobson (Taxation Manager), Mrs M Rogers 
(Benefits Manager), Mrs L Rudziak (Director of Housing 
and Communities), Mrs D Shepherd (Chief Executive), 
Ms A Stevens (Divisional Manager for Environmental 
Protection) and Mr J Ward (Director of Corporate 
Services) 

   
17    Chair's Announcements  

 
Cllr Lintill welcomed all those present and listening online. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Dignum. 
 
Cllr Lintill explained that she had accepted one late item relating to one membership 
change for Development Plan and Infrastructure Panel (DPIP). 
  

18    Approval of Minutes  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 6 September 2022 be approved as 
a correct record. 
  

19    Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
  

20    Public Question Time  
 
There were no public questions.  
  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



21    Council Tax Review of Locally Defined Discounts and Premiums  
 
Cllr Wilding introduced the item. 
 
Cllr Plant asked whether the empty home premium had reduced the number of 
empty homes. Cllr Wilding explained that the figure had increased. Mr Jobson 
added that the policy encourages the use of second homes.  
 
Cllr Taylor explained that the number of second homes which are not required to 
pay Council Tax or Business Rate Tax but have use of council facilities such as 
refuse collection has caused concern. She added that she supported the 
recommendation. Mr Jobson explained that it has been acknowledged by 
Government but at present a property only has to be available for let and not 
occupied by lets to qualify for the exemption.  
 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Council Tax Discounts and Premiums proposed in the Appendix to the 
agenda report be applied for the 2023-2024 financial year. 
  

22    Determination of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2023 – 2024  
 
Cllr Wilding introduced the item. 
 
In a vote the following recommendation and resolution were agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Council Tax Discounts and Premiums proposed in the Appendix to the 
agenda report be applied for the 2023-2024 financial year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
 
That Cabinet recommend the proposed Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2023-2024 
be approved by Full Council. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Cabinet delegate approval for mid-year changes in the Scheme, where it is 
deemed appropriate for the Director for Housing and Communities following 
consultation with the Director of Corporate Services and Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Corporate Services and Revenues and Benefits. 
  

23    WSCC's Concession Contract for the Provision of Electric Vehicle Charge 
Points and Related Services  
 
Cllr Plant introduced the item. 
 

Page 2



Cllr Moss had requested to speak and was invited to do so by Cllr Lintill. He spoke 
in favour of joining the group. He requested clarification of whether the council would 
join as a collaborative organisation or as a key delivery authority (KDA) and what 
level of influence that would provide. He also asked why Northgate Car Park had 
been excluded. Mr Ballard explained that there are two levels of membership; the 
collaborative organisation or the KDA. The council would join in a collaborator 
capacity. He explained the difference would be that as a collaborator there would 
not necessarily be a position on the two working Boards. Any attendance to those 
Boards would be in a non-voting capacity. He added that Chichester District had 15 
sites proposed in the plans following community feedback via social media. With 
regard to Northgate Car Park he explained that there is currently a project looking at 
the design of the car park. Cllr Lintill asked whether that meant that once the work 
had been undertaken it could be considered. Mr Ballard confirmed that was the case 
whilst drawing members attention to the Sloe Fair Byelaw.  
 
Cllr Wilding asked whether the council would have a say in the position of the 
charging points in the car parks. Mr Ballard explained that if the council joined the 
contract then each proposed installation site would be subject  to negotiation with 
the contractor. If it was not possible to reach agreement on particular Council sites, 
the council would be able to install its own charging points using the funding agreed 
in the report.  
 
Cllr Taylor requested clarification of when the 15 year lease begins. Mr Ballard 
explained that each lease would begin at the point of the charge point being 
installed in any given car park in the scheme. It was therefore possible to have 
different leases for different car parks across the district.  
 
Cllr Lintill asked for more information on the profit share model outlined in the 
reports Executive Summary. Mr Ballard explained for every kilowatt sold across the 
network 1pence is put in a central pot. The pooled revenue is then divided up 
amongst the parties in the contract in ratio to the number of charge points that each 
hosts. Cllr Lintill asked whether the contractor would keep the charge points up-to-
date as required. Mr Ballard explained that it would be in Connected Kerb’s interest 
to do so in order to maximise their use, revenues and return on investment. 
 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Cabinet resolves that the Council joins the West Sussex County Council 
concession contract for the planning, installation, operation and maintenance of an 
electric vehicle charging network. 
 
That Cabinet resolves that Parking Services retains the remaining £35,700 electric 
vehicle charging points budget to enable the installation of EVCP’s in new locations 
and/or the expansion of provision in existing locations whether the Council joins the 
WSCC contract or not and potentially in locations rejected by CK but where the 
Council wishes to see EVCP provision.  
  

24    Late Items  

Page 3



 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Cllr Adrian Moss be appointed to replace Cllr John-Henry Bowden on the 
Development Plan and Infrastructure Panel. 
  

25    Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
Cllr Lintill proposed and read the part II resolution in relation to agenda items 10 and 
11. This was seconded by Cllr Taylor and agreed by the Cabinet with a vote to go 
into part II.  
 
RESOLVED  
 
That with regard to agenda items 10 and 11 the public excluding the press should 
be excluded from the meeting on the grounds of exemption in Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 namely paragraph 3 (information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information)) and because in all the circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption of that information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information.  
 
Members took a short break. 
  

26    Phase 2 of Coastal Partners; Transfer of Staff  
 
Cllr Plant introduced the item. 
 
Questions were received from Cllr Lintill, Cllr Briscoe and Cllr Sutton. Mrs Stevens 
provided responses.  
 
In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the recommendation as set out in section 2.1 of the report be approved. 
  

27    Recording Equipment in Committee Rooms  
 
Cllr Wilding introduced the item. 
 
Cllr Moss had requested to speak and was invited to do so by Cllr Lintill. He spoke 
in favour of recommendation but asked for clarification on a number of points raised 
by the report. Mrs Baines provided responses.  
 
Cllr Taylor and Cllr Sutton also provided comment. They supported the 
recommendation. Cllr Wilding provided a point of clarification.  
 

Page 4



In a vote the following resolution was agreed: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the recommendation as set out in section 2.1 of the report be approved. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 10.28 am  
 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN 

  
Date: 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Chichester District Council 

CABINET         1 November 2022 

Development Management Division 

Planning Performance Agreements 

 
1. Contacts 

Report Author: 
Fjola Stevens – Divisional Manager Development Management 
Tel: 01243 534557                   Email:   fstevens@chichester.gov.uk 
 
Cabinet Member: 
Susan Taylor - Cabinet Member for Planning Services 
Tel: 01243 514034 E-mail: staylor@chichester.gov.uk 
 

2. Executive Summary 

This report outlines the role of Planning Performance Agreements (PPAs) in 
supporting the resourcing of the Development Management Division and 
delivering new development within the Chichester Local Plan area. The 
report seeks approval to enter into a new PPA for development at 
Graylingwell and also for the Director of Planning and Environment in 
consultation with the Planning Portfolio Holder to have delegated authority 
to enter into future PPA’s on other sites, and vary existing PPAs, with a 
financial value of less than £100,000. 

 
3. Recommendation  

3.1 That Cabinet: 

i. Resolves that the Council enters into a Planning Performance 
Agreement (PPA) with Linden/Downland Graylingwell LLP in 
respect of development at Graylingwell Park; and  

ii. Delegates authority to the Director of Planning and 
Environment in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Planning Services to: 

a. Enter into future proposed PPA’s across the Chichester 
Local Plan area with a value of no more than £100,000 and 
to extend or vary the terms of existing PPA’s with a value of 
no more than £100,000. 

b. And to expend the sums received under PPAs in 
accordance with the PPAs’ terms. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:staylor@chichester.gov.uk


4. Background 
 
4.1 A Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) is a project management tool 

which is used by local planning authorities and developers to agree 
timescales, actions, and resources for handling a planning application, or 
applications, on a specific site. A PPA can include the whole development 
management process from pre-application discussions through to 
discharging planning conditions following the grant of planning permission 
or just part of that process. A PPA does not prejudice the consideration of 
a proposal because it does not indicate any particular outcome for any 
application. PPAs are usually only appropriate for large scale 
developments. 

 
4.2 The key benefits of entering into a PPA for the Council include the ability 

to effectively manage the timetable for the processing of applications due 
to the funding of dedicated staff resources. PPA’s have been used 
successfully for a number of strategic scale development schemes. A PPA 
typically enables funding to be secured to support a suitable qualified 
officer to manage all applications relating to the site. Without such 
additional resource, it is not possible to prioritise these applications and 
deal with them as efficiently, which would ultimately slow down delivery of 
housing in these key locations. 

 
Graylingwell PPA  
 
4.3  Linden/Downland LLP are the company building out 7 parcels of land at 

the Graylingwell SDL. A PPA has been in place previously and this has 
now expired. The new proposed PPA sets out guiding principles to ensure 
collaborative working, a timetable to managing a range of applications 
over a 12-month period, a commitment to pay a total of £54,675 for the 
resources to manage the applications, and obligations on each party 
regarding performance. The amount of work involved with the 
development is significant and the developer and officers have agreed that 
a 12-month term is appropriate, however there is also the option to extend 
the agreement for a further period (with an additional fee) should it be 
necessary to complete the work. The fee would be paid in 2 instalments, 
the first at the beginning of the agreement, and the 2nd after 6 months. The 
statutory application fees, and pre-application fees as set out in the 
Council’s charging scheme, would be paid separately upon submission of 
applications. 

 
4.4 Each of the 7 parcels of land being built out by Linden/Downland LLP are 

at different stages of development, and therefore a range of application 
types including pre-application enquiries, planning applications, reserved 
matters applications and discharges of conditions are included within the 
timetable, as relevant to each parcel. It is positive that the developer has 
agreed to include pre-application discussions, where considered 
necessary, within the timetable, as this is important for collaborative 
working and should assist with the speed of decision making when formal 
planning applications are received.  

Page 8



 
4.5  The obligations within the PPA upon the developer would include 

submitting information in line with the agreed timetable, unless any 
variation is agreed with the Council, and complying with the agreed 
performance standards. The obligations upon the Council are to provide 
resources equivalent to a 1 FTE Senior Planning Officer who alone or as 
part of a team will be responsible for overseeing or carrying out the 
functions in accordance with the PPA, to enable 3-weekly project meetings 
(where necessary), and to comply with the agreed performance standards. 
The performance standards include inter alia matters such as timeframes 
to; respond to correspondence, provide relevant information and 
documents prior to meetings, circulate agendas for meetings, provide 
minutes of meetings, and means of communication. 

 
4.6 The proposed PPA would provide suitable funding to resource the work 

required to effectively manage the applications that will be forthcoming at 
Graylingwell, which is likely to ensure a good pace of delivery of housing 
and the other associated uses on the site. This is important for the 
Council’s 5-year housing land supply, but also for the community living at 
Graylingwell. 

 
Future PPA’s 
 
4.7     Officers have found the use of PPA’s successful in managing applications 

at the Strategic Development Locations; examples to date include West of 
Chichester, Graylingwell and Tangmere. It is a model that is considered 
beneficial in terms of resourcing posts within Development Management 
and it also ensures dedicated resources can be provided with continuity 
through the development process, which is important for complex major 
projects. It is not possible to predict when a developer will make such a 
request, and it is often the case that they wish to negotiate and agree the 
PPA swiftly prior to submitting applications. This can make it difficult to 
forward plan, including seeking Cabinet approval which can slow down the 
process. It is for these reasons that delegated authority is being requested. 

 
4.8 On occasion it is necessary to extend or vary an existing PPA, this may be 

to include an additional application or because the timeframe for 
completing the work covered by the PPA needs to be increased. These 
amendments are also usually time critical, and it is for this reason that 
delegated authority to extend or vary existing agreements is being sought. 

 
5. Outcomes to be achieved 

5.1 The key outcomes are additional resourcing to support the effective and 
efficient management of large-scale major proposals, thereby ensuring 
that high quality development is delivered in a timely fashion. This 
supports the Council’s 5-year housing land supply, good place making, 
and the provision of sustainable communities. 

 

Page 9



6. Proposal 

6.1 It is proposed that the Council enters into a PPA with Linden/Downland 
LLP for development at Graylingwell, and that in the future, the Director of 
Planning and Environment is authorised to enter into new PPA’s with a 
value of no more than £100,000 and to vary or extend existing PPA’s with 
a value of no more than £100,000 and to spend the funding secured.    

7. Alternatives Considered 

7.1 Consideration has been given to not entering into PPAs, however this will 
not assist with the resourcing of the Development Management Division 
for large scale development proposals and will reduce the control officers 
have over the timing of applications being submitted for major 
developments.  

8. Resource and Legal Implications 

8.1 The proposed PPA (and PPA’s for other schemes) will assist with the 
resourcing of the Development Management Division and the 
management of major applications. Entering into a PPA does not however 
affect the proper consideration of applications or prejudice open and 
transparent assessment of proposals. There are no other legal 
implications. 

9. Consultation 

9.1 No consultation has taken place or is necessary. 
 

10. Community Impact and Corporate Risks 

10.1 The recommendations in this report are important to reduce the risks 
associated with the ability of the Council to deal with the major planning 
applications submitted to it. Delays in the determination of such planning 
applications can affect the viability of business as well as people’s choices 
of how and where they live. It is therefore important that the Council deals 
with the determination of applications in an expedient manner. 

11. Other Implications  

Are there any implications for the following? 
 Yes No 
Crime and Disorder   x 
Biodiversity and Climate Change Mitigation - Further resources will 
ensure proper consideration of these matters as part of the application 
determination process 

x  

Human Rights and Equality Impact   x 
Safeguarding and Early Help   x 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)   x 
Health and Wellbeing   x 

Page 10



 

12. Appendices 

 12.1 None 

13. Background Papers 

13.1  None. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Chichester District Council 
 

Cabinet                         1 November 2022 
 

 
Land at Western End of Terminus Road 

 
1. Contacts 

Report Author: 
Kevin Gillett – Valuation and Estates Manager   
Telephone: 01243 534511  E-mail: kgillett@chichester.gov.uk 
 
Cabinet Member: 
Tony Dignum – Cabinet Member for Growth, Place and Regeneration 
Telephone: 01243 538585  E-mail: tdignum@chichester.gov.uk   
 

2. Recommendation  

2.1 Cabinet approves the release of £20,000 from reserves to appoint a design 
team to proceed to planning and to tender for the construction of a car park 
at the western end of Terminus Road. A further report will be presented to 
cabinet on the outcome of the tender process.  

 
3. Background 

 
3.1 Officers engaged Transport Planning consultants ‘Bright Plan’ to consider options 

available to bring into use ‘scrubland’ areas of land, sited between the Enterprise 
Centre and the A27 Fishbourne roundabout, as shown shaded at Appendix 1. 
There is an unmet need for parking for occupiers of premises on Terminus Road 
and as such primary consideration was given to the provision of parking facilities, 
which in turn would generate the Council additional revenue. 

 
3.2 The sites are heavily vegetated, particularly around the perimeter and it is 

anticipated that for the most part only low-lying vegetation will need to be 
removed to accommodate parking on this land. Much of the vegetation viewed 
from the highways surrounding the sites is situated within the adopted highway 
boundary (shown hatched at Appendix 1) and will be unaffected by the proposals. 
 

3.3 Bright Plan reported on a number of potential schemes for both northern and 
southern land parcels as well as the contiguous vacant plot to the south of the 
Enterprise Centre. Viability considerations for traffic numbers, speeds, visibility 
and A27 improvements were analysed in forming their report.  The most feasible 
and viable option relates to the northern land parcel and would utilise the existing 
access point currently serving the Enterprise Centre.  Although requiring some 
reconfiguration of the existing parking area adjacent to the Enterprise Centre, this 
option could create approximately 138 new parking spaces overall.  An indicative 
layout plan is shown at Appendix 1. 

 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:kgillett@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:tdignum@chichester.gov.uk


 
 

 

4. Proposal  
 

4.1 It is proposed to progress the option to create additional parking on land to the 
north of the western end of Terminus Road, utilising the existing access point off 
the adopted highway. Due to the challenges identified in the options appraisal 
work, options relating to the other land areas are not being progressed. 
 

4.2 Officers request the release of £20,000 from reserves, which will be added to the 
£5,500 remaining from the funds agreed for the initial options appraisal work.  The 
total budget of £25,500 will fund the development of a final design and 
specification plus preparing and submitting a planning application.  Following this 
and the grant of planning permission, a procurement exercise can take place and 
once tender prices have been received officers will bring a further report to 
Cabinet. 

  
4.3 The proposed option will necessitate reconfiguring the adjacent land currently 

used for storage of cars and construction materials, which cannot take place until 
expiry of the short term leases currently held for those sites.  The proposed 
timeline for the work set out in Paragraph 4.2 will accommodate this, with officers 
expecting to complete the tender exercise early in Q2 2023. 
 

5. Outcomes to be Achieved 
 
5.1   To support local businesses with the provision of additional parking. 
 
5.2  To generate additional revenue income for the Council, as shown in paragraph 

7.2 of this report. 
 
5.3   To bring back into short to medium term use a redundant piece of land.  

 
6. Alternatives Considered 

 
6.1. Do nothing, given the uncertainty around the A27 highway improvements. 

However, if those improvements do not proceed in the near to medium term 
future, which is the most likely scenario at this time, then doing nothing would 
mean a lost opportunity for additional revenue income for the Council.  
 

6.2. Develop the land to the south of Terminus Road for additional parking provision.  
The shape of this parcel of land would significantly compromise any potential use.  
Further challenges of this site are the proximity to the Strategic Road Network 
(SRN) and the adjacent land parcel access point, its position on the inside of a 
carriageway bend, plus existing traffic congestion approaching the Fishbourne 
Roundabout. For similar reasons, it is not considered feasible to create a new 
access to the northern parcel of land directly off Terminus Road.  

 
6.3. Develop the land for commercial purposes. This option was considered following 

an approach by an agent acting for a well-known coffee chain. Pre-app planning 
advice obtained by the agent flagged the potential land requirement for changes 
to the A27, which meant this option has no realistic prospect of being 
commercially viable given the level of investment that would be required.  
  
 

Page 14



 
 

 

7. Resource and Legal Implications 
 
7.1. Estimated construction costs range from £90,000 for a temporary aggregate 

finish to £170,000 for a full asphalt/tarmac finish.  The funds requested in this 
report will enable a full design to be developed including selection of a surface 
finish appropriate for the site and assuming a life span of around 10 – 15 years. 
 

7.2. Estimated additional revenue income is £30,000 per annum. 
 

7.3. Officer time in procuring and managing the works and subsequent management 
of this site will be needed. It is anticipated that this will be accommodated within 
the existing Estates team resources. 

 
8. Consultation 

 
8.1. An initial informal comment from Planning Officers has identified some high level 

schemes for Local Plan mitigation, stating that any future nationally funded A27 
scheme may look different and may have alternative land take requirements. The 
recommendation from a Planning viewpoint is that a cautious approach is needed 
as there is little certainty about what land may be required in the future.  
 

8.2. The Economic Development Panel has considered the proposals and provided 
feedback to officers.  The Panel was supportive of the recommendation to seek 
to provide additional parking on the land, agreeing that there is an unmet demand 
for parking in this area.  Comments were made that excavation work should seek 
to limit disruption to biodiversity and vegetation should be retained where 
possible.  Officers responded to a question regarding the suitability of the site for 
a park and ride, advising that the site is too small for such use. 

 
9. Community Impact and Corporate Risks  

 
9.1. Should the A27 Fishbourne Roundabout junction improvements be brought 

forward sooner than expected then there is a risk that the costs associated with 
implementing the proposal may not be recovered through the revenue generated.  
 

9.2. There is a risk that planning permission may not be granted, although this risk 
can be managed by early engagement with the planning authority. 
 

9.3. Cost inflation continues to pose a risk, with a large degree of cost uncertainty.  
This risk can be managed through ensuring the design and specification is clear 
and proportionate to the desired eventual outcomes. 

 
9.4. There is no guarantee that demand for parking will continue indefinitely, which 

would impact on revenue income. Alternative uses such as open storage could 
help reduce this risk. 
 

10. Other Implications  
 

 Yes No 
Crime and Disorder  x 
Climate Change and Biodiversity  x 
Human Rights and Equality Impact  x 

Page 15



 
 

 

Safeguarding and Early Help  x 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)  x 
Health and Wellbeing  x 
Other (please specify)   x 

 
11. Appendix 

 
10.1 Appendix one – Plans 

 
12. Background Papers 
 

None 
 
 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1 

Location Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CDC Land Ownership 
Shaded land – CDC freehold ownership 
Hatched land – WSCC adopted highway 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 17



Potential parking layout 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Preferred access point/route

 

Page 18



Potential Reconfigured Parking adjacent to Enterprise Centre 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Chichester District Council 
 
CABINET                                                                              1 November 2022 

 
Financial Strategy and Plan 2023-24 to 2027-28 

 
 

1. Contacts 
 

Report Author: 
 
Helen Belenger, Divisional Manager Financial Services,  
Telephone: 01243 521045  E-mail: hbelenger@chichester.gov.uk 
 
Cabinet Member:  
  
Peter Wilding - Cabinet Member for Corporate Services  
Telephone: 01428 707324 E-mail: pwilding@chichester.gov.uk 
 

2. Executive Summary 
 

This report provides an update to the Council’s Financial Strategy and the 5 year 
Financial Model, which underpins the Council’s financial planning for the medium 
term forecasts, in preparation for the forthcoming financial year’s budget. All of which 
aids the mitigation of the risk in terms of the financial resilience of the Council.  
 
This approach enables the identification of any funding gaps at an early stage to 
ensure that intervention is undertaken in a considered and measured way, thereby 
adhering to the Council’s key financial objectives under its Corporate Plan and 
protecting services to the community. 
 
The strategy considers the Council’s progress on the efficiency savings and income 
generation identified as part of the Recovery Plan and the Future Services 
Framework prioritisation tool to aid decision making. Plus updates the 5 year 
financial model to show the forecast over the medium term considering the current 
economic inflationary and service cost pressures, and is a forecast based on the 
information available as at 30 September. Considering those assumptions, the 
financial strategy is forecasting a small deficit for 2023-24 without any new policy 
options included, with an underling deficit in the medium term of approximately 
£600k per annum.  
 
The key recommendations from this report will help to formulate the 2023-24 budget 
and the level of Council Tax which will be considered by Cabinet and Council in 
February and March 2023 respectively. When the Council will need to set a balanced 
revenue budget that is sustainable and in line with the Council’s key financial 
principles. 
 

 
3. Recommendation  

 
3.1 That the Cabinet considers and recommends to Council: 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

mailto:hbelenger@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:pwilding@chichester.gov.uk


 
a) The key financial principles and actions set out in appendix 1 of the 5 year 

Financial Strategy report are approved. 
b) That the Minimum Level of Reserves level is set, following the 

recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee. 
c) That the current 5 year Financial Model detailed in appendix 2 (Part 2) and 

the Resources Statement in appendix 3 to the Financial Strategy report be 
noted. 

d) That £1.457m is transferred from the General Fund Reserve to the 
Investment Risk reserve to increase the mitigation held for fair value 
adjustments for the Council’s long-term investments. 

  
4. Background 

 
4.1 In preparation for the annual budget process the Council’s Financial Strategy and the 

5 year Financial Model, including the key financial principles are reviewed. This is to 
consider the current and emerging financial pressures, saving plans, and review the 
key assumptions being used for future years’ forecasts.   
 

4.2 The annual budget for revenue spending for 2022-23 and the rolling 5 year capital 
and asset replacement programmes were approved by full Council on 8 March 2022. 
The budget incorporated the second year of the efficiency savings identified in the 
Future Services Framework Recovery Plan as approved in July 2020. 

 
4.3 To cope with the expected financial impact of the pandemic the Council approved 

£8m to be set aside to support the revenue budget over the medium term as part of 
the assessment in July 2020. To date it has not been necessary to draw on this 
reserve, but in setting the budget for 2022-23 it was anticipated that £808,100 would 
be required, enabling the Council to work towards a balanced budget within the 
medium term. 

 
5. Outcomes to be Achieved 

 
5.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the current position of the 5 year Financial 

Model, taking into account the impact of the pandemic, the recovery plan actions, 
corporate priorities, budget pressures currently being experienced and those that will 
impact future financial years. This includes forecasts of future Government funding 
based on the information available at this time. This report also considers the 
Financial Strategy and actions necessary to return the Council to a balanced financial 
position over the medium term without the need to use reserves.  
 

5.2 The application of the key financial principles that should be applied over the short to 
medium term will be used to underpin the annual spending report in February 2023 to 
set the 2023-24 budget and Council Tax requirement. This will help the Council to 
deliver its Corporate Plan objectives by having a sound financial position that aims to 
be balanced over the medium term and safeguard the Council’s priority services. 

 
6. Proposal 

 
6.1 The Financial Strategy (Appendix 1) sets out the current financial position, the 

challenges and uncertainties faced by the Council, and the guiding principles to be 
used to address the issues identified and the actions required; whilst adhering to its 

Page 22



key financial principles. Whilst the key financial principles are unchanged the 
document has been updated to reflect the current narrative and actions required.  
 

6.2 The 5 year Financial Model (Appendix 2) is a medium term forecast of the financial 
position of the Council, which has been updated to reflect current assumptions; 
including Government funding, council tax projections, as well as projected costs and 
previous planned efficiencies. It also contains the third year programme of efficiency 
savings to be adopted to address the budget deficit as a result of Covid-19 impact. 
The Council remains on course to deliver the approved savings and income 
generation target of £1.570m by 2024-25.  

 
6.3 The model continues to reflect 75% of the proposed savings and policy options to 

allow some flexibility in the implementation of the proposals as this latter programme 
is aspirational, relating to income generation opportunities, or are to an extent outside 
of the Council’s direct control. Ultimately being prudent in the model will help to 
mitigate some of the risk that the required savings will not be realised.  

 
6.4 It should be noted that the model reflects a high-level forecast of the potential 

financial position of the Council over the medium term, using known changes, plus a 
lot of assumptions based on information available at this time. Therefore, as we are 
in a period of a high degree of uncertainty, which makes the strategic forecasting 
very difficult. This report sets outs the significant risks associated with some key 
assumptions. 

 
6.5 The strategy is based on no new proposals due to the current projections of an 

underlying deficit. Therefore, any new proposals must adhere to the key financial 
principles before being incorporated in the budget proposed to Cabinet in February 
2023, and Council in March, specifically that any new cost growth or reductions of 
income must be funded before being agreed.  

 
6.6 It will be necessary to use reserves to help balance the budget in the medium term, 

whilst further efficiencies and income generation options are developed in the 
medium term. This approach is to allow time for members and officers to develop 
options as this task will be challenging after already delivering the £1.570m savings 
target since 2021-22 in response to the impact of the pandemic.  

 
 

6.7 The model also considers known cost pressures which the Council has no choice in 
budgeting for; some of which impact not only the current year but the budget for 
2023-24 and beyond i.e., high inflation, pay award for 2022-23, rising fuel and utility 
costs. 

 
6.8 In terms of Government funding there is a great deal of uncertainty as the Funding 

Review and the localisation of Business Rates (BR) reset has again been delayed, 
with no detail yet as to when these reviews will impact the local government financial 
settlement. It is also unclear whether the provisional settlement announcement 
expected in early December will be for 2023-24 only or a multi-year offer, and 
whether the Council will still be awarded New Homes Bonus, the Rural Service Grant 
etc. 

 
6.9 For Business rates a new valuation list is expected for April 2023, but the timing of 

when this information will be received is uncertain, along with whether the Business 

Page 23



Rates multiplier will be frozen, and whether councils will be fully compensated or not. 
Against this background of uncertainty any delay in resetting the Baseline for 
Business Rates continues to be good news for the Council as it will continue to 
benefit from the growth achieved so far. The anticipated impact of the Baseline reset 
is that the Council will retain approximately £1.5m less per annum under this funding 
regime change. The exact timing of this change is currently unknown, but it has been 
assumed in the model that this change may occur from 2025-26.  

 
6.10 The key assumptions for inflation for pay, prices, and pensions etc. are set out in 

appendix 1 Para 3.a based on current expectations. Due to the current uncertainty in 
the financial markets affecting the fair value of the Council’s long term investments in 
line with the detail in paragraph 3 (f) investment income (appendix 1) and the position 
on the statutory override consultation which is awaited; it is recommended that 
£1.457m is transferred from the general fund reserve to the investment risk reserve. 
The balance in this reserve will be reviewed annually and adjusted in line with the 
movements in fair value and the risk posed of losses being charged to revenue. 

 
6.11 Appendix 3 sets out the current level of reserves, anticipated grant funding, and the 

commitments against those reserves. The uncommitted balance represents the 
potential funds available for the council to invest in new schemes. The forecast now 
excludes any future capital receipts, ensuring that this approach is comparable to the 
treatment of the New Homes Bonus (NHB), and in line with the key financial 
principles. Whilst under the current regime operated NHB may be awarded in 2023-
24, with details released in the provisional financial settlement in December, the 
resources statement only incorporates grant received. As awards are only for 1 year 
as all legacy payment for new homes added to the tax base have now ceased. It is 
still unclear if NHB grant will cease with any fundamental funding review by 
Government. 

 
6.12 The outcome of the Corporate Governance & Audit Committee’s recommendation for 

the Minimum Level of Reserves will be a verbal update as their meeting is on 31 
October after the publication of the Cabinet’s agenda papers. The Minimum level of 
Reserves approved for 2022-23 budget was £4m. 

 
7. Alternatives Considered 

 
7.1 The Financial Strategy is a vital tool that aids financial planning and helps to identify 

when remedial action is required at an early stage to ensure the Council sets a 
balanced budget. Even with all the uncertainty and pressure faced by the Council in 
the current cost of living and inflationary crisis with the impact on the economy this 
legal requirement still has to be met. 
 

7.2 Various alternatives exist within the strategy and the 5 year plan. Reserves can be 
used to support the revenue budget as currently is the case. However, this is not 
sustainable in the long term as any deficit will need to be addressed. Further options 
will need to be explored in the short to medium term to address the forecast funding 
gap as indicated in appendix 2. However, there are some significant risks on some 
key assumptions based on the current information available as at September 2022.  
However, as the Council waits for greater clarity on matters from government on 
future funding, the Environment Act etc. the £8m earmarked to support the revenue 
budget remains available, with approximately £2.736m required in 2022-23. 
Ultimately long term use of reserves to support the revenue budget would be contrary 

Page 24



to the financial principle of using non-recurring income, such as NHB, to fund 
recurring expenditure. Full Council approved this approach of balancing the budget 
over the medium term using reserves to assist in the intervening years so that vital 
front line services could be protected. 

 
7.3 Although the financial model will assume certain levels of Council Tax increases, it 

will be for the Council to determine the appropriate level annually. For 2023-24 the 
Council Tax levels will be recommended by Cabinet at their February 2023 meeting 
for Council to consider at their March 2023 meeting. The model currently assumes 
we will increase Council Tax by £5 per annum, or less than 10 pence per week. 
 

8. Resource and Legal Implications 
 

8.1 The Financial 5 year Model helps the Council to financially plan and set a balanced 
budget each year, which is a legal requirement. The modelling assists with identifying 
funding gaps early to plan ahead to consider options to address the issues in a 
measured way rather than reactive. 
 

8.2 The 2022-23 budget required an estimated £808,100 from reserves to balance the 
budget. In year cost pressures as detailed in the 5 year model have increased that 
deficit to a forecast £2.736m. While the £8m allocated to support the revenue budget 
is able to meet this immediate demand, and provide support in setting the 2023-24 
budget, it is not sustainable to rely on using reserves indefinitely. Following the 2023 
elections members and officers will need to review priorities and establish a 
programme of efficiencies to return the council to a balanced position without on-
going reliance on reserves.  

 
9. Consultation 

 
9.1 Cabinet and all opposition Group Leaders have monthly meetings, including regular 

financial updates, with the Strategic Leadership Team. Specific strategy briefing days 
have taken place in September with members to set out the forecasts detailed in the 
Financial Strategy and the projections in the 5 year model. 
 

9.2 The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee (CG&AC) will have considered this 
report at their meeting on 31 October. Due to the timing of the Committee a verbal 
update will be given to Cabinet on the outcome of their review and any 
recommendations including in relation to the Minimum Level of Reserves 
 

9.3 As part of the annual budget setting, a Budget Briefing Task & Finish Group 
comprising of 3 members from both the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
CG&AC will take place in December/January to consider the major variances of the 
proposed budget for 2023-24, which will have been informed from the forecasts from 
within the 5 year Financial Model, the Resources Statement and hopefully the 
provisional local government funding settlement for 2023-24. 
 

10. Community Impact and Corporate Risks  
 

10.1 The Financial Strategy and 5 Year Financial Model helps the Council to manage the 
strategic risk of financial resilience. However, there remains a great deal of 
uncertainty in the medium term including future changes in local government funding, 

Page 25



the ongoing impact on the economy from world events, supply chain issues in the 
wider economy, and inflationary cost pressures that have an impact on service costs.  
 

10.2 The 5 year model reflects the picture based on a number of assumptions, as it is not 
possible to predict with absolute certainty the Council’s budget position over this 
period, which is why the model is revisited frequently. The Financial Strategy sets out 
the key financial risks both in terms of likelihood and impact. 
 

10.3 The impact on the Council’s discretionary income streams due to the effect of the 
pandemic illustrates the reliance on income generating services to fund Council 
services. The Model has taken into account the ongoing behavioural changes due to 
the pandemic is expected to have on some income streams such as car parking.  
 

10.4 To manage the financial risk, each year the Council set the minimum level of 
reserves it will hold specifically for unexpected costs or income losses as part of its 
budget spending plans for the forthcoming financial year. 
 

10.5 Appendix 3 identifies the total level of reserves held, as at 31 March 2022. After 
taking account of anticipated new receipts and commitments, including the capital 
programme and earmarked reserves for specific purposes, £8m allocated for the 
revenue budget support, and a contingency for the LEP funding agreement for 
Southern Gateway, the Council still has available reserves of £11.932m (with the 
current £4m minimum balance plus £7.932m uncommitted), which is adequate to 
address any shortfall as necessary, and demonstrates that the current capital 
programme is fully funded.  
 

10.6 There is also a risk in relation to service delivery and support to the community 
impacting the Council due to the budget pressures experienced by other local 
authorities and voluntary organisations now and in the future. 
 

11. Other Implications 
  

 Yes No 
Crime and Disorder   ✓  
Biodiversity and Climate Change Mitigation   ✓  
Human Rights and Equality Impact   ✓  
Safeguarding and Early Help   ✓  
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)    ✓  
Health and Wellbeing  ✓  

 
12. Appendices 

 
12.1 Appendix 1 – Financial Strategy and Medium-Term Financial Plan for 2023-2024 to 

2027-28 
 
12.2 Appendix 2 – Five-Year Financial Model (Part 2) 
 
12.3 Appendix 3 – Statement of Resources 

 
13. Background Papers 

 
13.1 None 

Page 26



Appendix 1 

 

  Financial Strategy  

Introduction 

The Council’s Corporate Plan 2022-2025 was last approved by Council on 25 
January 2022, and is available on the Council’s website here. The plan sets out the 
Council’s priorities that represent the challenges and opportunities facing the District 
Council over the medium term.  

This Council has absorbed funding reductions of 41% in cash terms since 2010-11 
whilst still protecting frontline services for the residents of the district. The 
coronavirus pandemic has placed further strain on the council’s finances. In 
response to this a deep and wide-ranging efficiency savings programme had been 
delivered under the Future Services Framework (FSF) which was approved by 
Council in July 2020. The agreed savings have been reflected in budgets since 
2021-22, with further targets to be achieved in both 2023-24 and 2024-25. 

The final phase of the FSF was to address any residual impact on the financial 
position of the council, by providing a service prioritisation tool to aid the decision 
making and ensure a balanced budget will be achieved over the medium term. The 5 
year financial forecast is based on the latest information available to aid strategic 
financial planning, along with some fundamental assumptions about future 
government funding and changes to legislation or regulation changes such as the 
Environment Bill etc. Recent changes in central government in recent months, 
including the Levelling Up Secretary of State, has meant that expected consultations 
during the summer regarding the offer of a multi-year settlement have not been 
forthcoming. 

 Under the Corporate Plan the Council’s priorities are: 

• Homes for all 
• Thriving Economy 
• Supported Communities 
• Financial Prudence 
• A Cared-For Environment 

Each of these priorities are underpinned by several objectives that set out what the 
Council aims to achieve and the success measures for the identified actions to be 
undertaken.  

The key financial objective under the Corporate Plan is Financial Prudence, 
specifically to manage the Council’s finances prudently and effectively. 

The Council’s aim is to: 

• Ensure prudent use of the Council’s resources. 
• Provide value for money through efficient and effective service 

delivery 
 
 
 

Page 27

https://www.chichester.gov.uk/media/36734/Corporate-Plan-2022---2025/pdf/Corporate_plan_2022-2025_web.pdf


Appendix 1 
 

 

How the Council will achieve the aims will be to:  

• Ensure the revenue budget and capital programme remain balanced and 
sustainable over a rolling 5 year period. 

• Require compensating savings before any new unfunded revenue 
expenditure is approved, including capital expenditure that has revenue 
consequences. 

• Maintain a programme of reviews for our services to ensure they are 
delivered efficiently and effectively. 

• Provide services without the use of reserves. 
• Continue to identify and develop new and appropriate income generating 

opportunities that are in keeping with the Corporate Plan’s vision. 
• Maintain an investment strategy that preserves and improves the financial 

resources available to the Council. 
• Rigorously manage the Council’s risks. 
• Have sound governance arrangements in place. 

The success measures agreed by Council on 25 January 2022 were: 

• Return the Council to a balanced revenue position within the 5-year model 
period 2026-27 (target date April 2026)  

• Manage and successfully deliver the 2021 to 2024 efficiency programme 
(target date March 2024) 

• Conclude the review of governance arrangements (target date May 2022) – 
Completed March 2022 

• Prepare budget and spending plans that are balanced and affordable (target 
date annually) 

• Prepare treasury, investment and capital strategies that comply with 
regulations and make best use of Council resources (target date annually) 

Approach and Approval Process 

Linked to the main financial management objective: 

1. The Council maintains a 5 year rolling medium term financial strategy 
model which is underpinned by the key financial principles.  
 

2. The key financial principles, along with an annual position statement is 
reported to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee for their 
consideration in relation to managing the strategic risk of financial resilience 
and considering the minimum level of general fund reserves that should be 
held. The Committee’s recommendations are incorporated into the annual 
Financial Strategy report, considered by both Cabinet and Council ahead of 
the budget report for the annual budget and council tax setting required prior 
to the start of the new financial year. 
 

3. A statement of resources is maintained to identify the current level of 
reserves, the commitments against those reserves, and therefore the potential 
funds available for the Council to invest in new schemes. 

Page 28



Appendix 1 

 

 
4. In year quarterly revenue monitoring is undertaken to identify trends and 

cost pressures which will inform the revenue budget for the forthcoming 
financial year and beyond. Along with the planned spending on capital and 
asset replacement projects against the approved programmes. 

Under the umbrella of the Financial Strategy are other linked key policies and 
strategies which assist with ensuring the robust financial management of the 
Council. These are: 

• the Treasury Management and Investment Strategies – cashflow 
management linked to the spending plans of the Council and the investment 
of surplus funds 
 

• the Capital Strategy – a corporate strategy that is a high-level overview of 
how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity 
contribute to the provision of local services and how the risks are managed 
by the Council.  

Both these strategies are updated considering any legislative changes, or relevant 
good practice as recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). 

The Council maintains a 5 year capital programme linking the available resources 
directly to corporate priorities and taking into account revenue implications within the 
5 year Financial Strategy Model.  

There is also a 5 year planned programme to replace the assets used by the Council 
to deliver its services, developed from the 25 year Asset Replacement Programme 
Model. This is updated annually as part of the budget cycle and is in line with the 
Council’s key financial principles; specifically, financial principle 3, that assets are 
maintained/ replaced, and that the investment is sustainable by not using reserves 
for ongoing expenditure.  

Medium Term Financial Plan 
 
The aim of the plan is to ensure the financial stability and to support council services 
by regularly reviewing the key financial influences and identifying the associated 
risks. 

1. Current Financial Position 

The Council continues with its plan under the Future Services Framework (FSF) 
developed in response to impact of the pandemic on the Council’s financial 
position in 2020-21. The income generation opportunities and efficiency savings 
developed under the FSF identified £2.093m of savings over a 3 year period 
(starting with 2021-22), which at that time appeared to be sufficient to balance the 
budget over the medium term. 75% of this savings target has been built into the 5 
year model to mitigate the potential risk of the achievement being lower. 

Page 29



Appendix 1 
 

 

However, as can be seen in 2022-23 external inflationary pressures and world 
events have impacted every household and businesses due to the current cost of 
living crisis. These cost pressures have impacted the council too, and all 
forecasts have been updated with the latest information or assumptions revised 
considering the inflationary pressures being experienced at this time. 

The approved budget for 2022-23 built in the second year of the FSF efficiency 
savings of £267k, offset by a one-off investment cost of £245k for the CCS waste 
service to invest in service improvements that are expected to generate 
additional savings in future years. The overall efficiency savings and income 
generation recovery plan remains on target to achieve the identified savings by 
2024-25. 

The financial position remains very uncertain as some income streams are still 
impacted by behavioural change as a result of the pandemic, along with the 
continued uncertainty in the economy, and the inflationary cost pressures being 
experienced now. 

The current cost pressures include a pay award risk as the latest employers’ offer 
has yet to be accepted for 2022-23; in the base budget an allowance for a 2% 
pay award was made, however, anything above that will mean a higher draw on 
the general fund reserve to balance the revenue outturn. The current employer’s 
pay offer to Local Government staff is a flat rate increase of £1,925 per employee 
(pro rata for part time staff), which will add a cost pressure of £976k in 2022-23 
and beyond. The challenging recruitment and retention of relevant skilled staff is 
another potential risk for the Council which could have further cost implications. 

As part of the preparation for the 2023-24 budget, the pay and some other cost 
pressures have a certain degree of certainty, whereas others that have been 
identified are still very unclear. This includes the possible introduction of 
mandatory food waste collections where we have assumed that we would receive 
50% funding from government.  

The uncertainties make the task of strategic financial planning very difficult, along 
with the lack of clarity about government funding for 2023-24 and beyond. The 
main inflationary costs pressures in the current year also includes utility costs, 
fuel pricing, the economic and financial impact on our leisure management 
arrangements and any voids of our commercial rented properties. 

Due to the continued uncertainties and financial risks in the financial planning for 
the council, the priority setting stage of the Future Services Framework tool was 
completed during 2021-22. The results of this priority setting exercise were 
approved by the Council on 25 January 2022. 

This tool is essential to aid members to determine the priorities of the Council and 
allocate resources accordingly, whilst complying with the legal requirement to 
balance the budget. During the preparation for the 2023-24 the FSF prioritisation 
tool will be revisited during the autumn and the results of the consultation with 
members reported to Council in January 2023. This is essential to aid the budget 
setting in March 2023 and consider the actions required over the medium term to 

Page 30



Appendix 1 

 

ensure the council meets the corporate plan objective of returning to a balanced 
budget. 

In July 2020 £8m from the General Fund Reserve was set aside to support the 
revenue budget due to the impact of the global pandemic over the medium term. 
To date we have not yet had to draw on this reserve, but in setting the budget for 
the current financial year (2022-23) it was anticipating that £808,100 would be 
required, enabling the Council to work towards a balanced budget within the 
medium term. 

Since the budget was set for 2022-23, Cabinet & Council have approved various 
additional expenditure for projects or cost pressures that will need to be funded 
from the Council’s general reserve. The items approved are listed below 
increasing the draw on reserves to £1,683,100: 

 

Taking these known additions to the council’s spending plans for 2022-23, along 
with the forecasts of the costs pressures currently being experienced (as 
indicated in the updated 5 year model in Appendix 2), the draw on reserves to 
balance the forecast outturn based on the current assumptions as at 30 
September 2022, is estimated at £2.736m. This forecast reflects current 
assumptions for inflation, the pay award and utilities costs, and there is a risk that 
the situation for all these significant items may be different by the year end, along 
with any additional new funding proposals made by Cabinet/Council between 
now until March 2023.  

Underpinning the financial strategy is the approach taken for each of the key 
financial principles, which considering the uncertainties and risks currently being 
experienced are essential in the Council’s financial planning and the mitigation of 
the strategic risk for financial resilience.  

A position statement and any further actions required, are detailed in Annex A 
against the Council’s key financial principles. 

The uncertainty and substantial risks which are the backdrop of the current year, 
it is important that any new policy decisions consider and adhere to the Council’s 

Approved Transfers to or (from) the General Fund Reserve £
- In year Surplus/(Deficit) transferred to/(from) the General Fund -808,100
 - Retention of temporary planning agency staff -56,600
 - Cost of engaging specialist professional services to support the Council defend three planning appeals -74,200
 - Engagement of a specialist company to carry out stock condition surveys for Council built assets -150,000
 - Bosham Car Park options appraisal -20,000
 - Leisure Management Contract Support 2022-23 -110,000
 - Graffiti and Fly Poster Removel -30,000
 - Development Management - Workload & Resources - funding to secure interim Applications Team Manager until February 2023 -40,000
 - Goss interactive to move the Council's website platform into the Cloud to improve online services and security -37,200
 - Supporting You project -300,000
- Coastal Partners project (one off cost approved May 2021 - funded slippage into 2022-23) -57,000

-1,683,100

Page 31



Appendix 1 
 

 

key financial principles regarding any growth and are measured against the 
Future Services Framework prioritisation tool. This is important considering the 
latest forecast for the medium term and the risks associated with some of the key 
assumptions. 

Also under Government policies the business rates retention scheme can be 
impacted, e.g. small business rate relief etc. and so to compensate the Council 
for the loss of this funding source, a grant is paid (which is known as a Section 31 
grant). Future changes in this scheme have a risk that the compensation 
awarded may not always fully cover the financial impact. 
 
The current approved 5 year capital and asset renewal programmes totalling 
£57.601m remains fully funded without the need to borrow from external sources 
and there is a balance of £7.932m uncommitted resources available for new 
projects and investment in services. In addition to this the, £8m allocated by 
Council in July 2020 to support the Council’s budget over the medium term due to 
the impact of the pandemic on its finances remains available at the start of 2022-
23. But as noted above, the projected deficit is estimated at £2.736m in the 
current year would need to be funded from this source. 

Appendix 3 of the Strategy report shows the current level of resources and the 
current commitments. The Council’s current approved programmes are available 
on its website at Annual budget: Chichester District Council. 

2. 2023-24 Settlement 
 
The provisional Financial Settlement for 2023-24 is expected to be announced by 
the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) in 
December 2022.  
 
Due to the recent changes in Government, it is currently unclear whether 2023-24 
will be a one year or multi-year settlement offer. Also, the exact timing of any 
changes in Government funding due to the Funding Review (FR) and the 
localisation of business rates impacting future settlements is unknown; it has 
been assumed in the model that the impact is from 2025-26 based on current 
intelligence. 
 
Annually as part of the provisional settlement the Government set the threshold 
criteria which would trigger a Council Tax referendum. It is likely that for 2022-23 
the threshold may be set at 2%, or £5 for shire districts, and authorities can set 
whichever is greater. Since this information will be confirmed after the 
Government’s technical consultation on the Local Government Financial 
Settlement 2022-23 expected in December, the 5 year model is assuming a £5 
council tax increase per annum. Ultimately this is a decision for full Council to 
make each year during its budget setting in March. 

There continues to be economic uncertainty both due to COVID and the wider 
world economy for supply issues, and resource/skill issues. Pre-pandemic the 
Council relied on approximately £18m of income from its fees and charges to 

Page 32

http://www.chichester.gov.uk/annualbudget


Appendix 1 

 

balance its budget but much of this is discretionary spend or linked to the 
economy. As highlighted in the last 12 to 18 months these discretionary sources 
of income have been impacted due to the effect of the pandemic and behavioural 
change; the effect on some income streams may never recover to pre-pandemic 
levels e.g. car parks, whereas, others have increased due to higher demand e.g. 
garden waste collection. This makes it difficult to predict future income levels 
from some of the Council’s income streams, and whilst the model includes some 
adjustments for income changes, it remains very uncertain and unpredictable, but 
it is assumed that a recovery of approximately 50% will be achieved in the 
medium term.  

3. 5 year Financial Model 
 
The 5 year financial model (appendix 2 of the Strategy report) has been updated 
to reflect the known changes for the forthcoming year, and forecasts for future 
years based on information currently available.  
 
This has been prepared with a prudent view in relation to service cost pressures, 
inflation, and other areas of financial risk. In addition, the efficiency savings from 
the COVID recovery action plan have been reviewed and updated as necessary 
for year 3 of this plan and reflected in the model, still with a 25% contingency to 
mitigate risk. The 5 year model is kept under review so that the Council has time 
to respond should the situation, and/or government funding be significantly 
different to that currently forecast. 

No new policy options have been included in the 5 year model for 2023-24 and 
future years, except to incorporate previous council decisions since the budget 
for 2022-23 as set in March 2022. The cost implication of these have been taken 
into account in the 5 year model for the current year, and beyond if they impact 
future years. This is because whilst there is currently a small surplus in the 
projections for 2023-24, over the medium term there is an underlying deficit of 
£565k (2025-26) to £467k (2027-28). The forecast for 2024-25 indicates a 
surplus of £656k, however this is not sustained and due to the deficits forecast 
over the medium term and the risks of the assumptions underlines the position of 
no new policy options. 

The main assumptions in model are: 
 

a. Inflation - Uplifts for inflation are given in table 1 below. Inflation this year 
has been extremely volatile and due to the unstable economies around the 
world impacting key supplies i.e., utility and fuel costs.  

General inflation - Is currently running at 8.8% in September (8.6% 
August 2022) for CPIH (Consumer Prices Index including owner occupiers’ 
housing costs), whereas the Consumer Price Index (CPI) increased to 
10.1% in September from 9.9% in August 2022. The model uses the  
September’s CPI rate for inflation in the 2023-24 budget. 

Page 33



Appendix 1 
 

 

Pay inflation – The model builds in the impact of the current offer for 
2022-23 of a flat rate increase of £1,925 for employees (pro rata for part 
time staff). An allowance for future pay inflation is also reflected in the 
model, but pay awards are subject to national negotiations annually. This 
is a potential risk factor if pay increases match general inflation levels 
creating a cyclical inflationary pressure.  Currently the exact pay award for 
2022-23 is out for negotiation with unions, and as such is still a major risk 
that the current additional costs estimated in the model could be 
insufficient.  

National Insurance – The Government’s recent announcement for the 
reversal of the 1.25% NI which was brought in in April 2022 with effect 
from 6 November 2022 has been reflected in the model. 

Summary - It has therefore been extremely difficult in formulating this 
year’s strategy to predict inflation levels over the medium term, the 
assumptions used are reflected in Table 1. The assumption for the 2023-
24 budget for general inflation and income is based on September’s CPI. 

Due to the level of inflationary impact being experienced currently, the 
table also shows the adjustments used for in year monitoring on cost 
pressures and the required additional support from the Council’s general 
fund reserve.  

Table 1: Inflation Assumptions 
 2022-23* 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 

 
Pay 7% 5% 3% 2.50% 2.25% 2% 
Pension 0 (0.4%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 
General 
prices 

6% 10.1% 5% 3% 2.50% 2% 

Income  0 10.1% 5% 3% 2.50% 2% 
  

*Note – For 2022-23 this is the additional allowance for inflation on top of the base budget 
assumptions i.e. 2% pay award and 4% for general prices. 

It should be noted that whilst these assumptions are used for the strategic 
modelling, where appropriate within the detailed annual budget exercise, 
specific inflation assumptions are applied for certain costs such as fuel and 
utility costs which have been extremely volatile in 2022-23. For utility costs 
the assumptions note the purchase in advance agreement that the Council 
has until 2024, with an annual renewal.  
 
The model will need to take account of the recently announced 
Government support in the utility market once details have been received 
and the impact known on the Council’s contract. This will impact only 
2022-23 outturn, as the support in the commercial market is for 6 months 
only until March 2023. 
 

Page 34



Appendix 1 

 

Income – The 2022-23 budget reflected a £100k reduction in the target for 
Planning Services income. No adjustment was made for the Car Parking 
income target for 2022-23, however Q1 monitoring for 2022-23 has 
indicated that Car Parking income was forecast to be above their target 
(additional income £360k including season tickets).  
 
The model reflects a partial recovery of income streams returning post 
Covid, as £1.428m was originally removed from base budgets. The 
assumption for income recovery for future years is based on Q1 
monitoring but reducing dampened by 25% as this is a potential area of 
risk. It is anticipated that recovery over the medium term will be only 
£768k, approximately 50% recovery. 
 
It has been assumed that the general rate of inflation is applied to all the 
discretionary income streams including car park income. Any difference to 
this assumption under the Council’s charging policy will need to consider 
the financial impact against the Future Services Framework. 
 
The Bank of England Base Rate is currently 2.25% (September 2022), 
which is the highest it has been since 2008. The anticipation is that there 
will be ongoing inflationary pressures in the economy, so interest rates 
may need to continue to rise with further rises of 0.25% in November and 
December, peaking at 2.75% by the end of 2022. Previous market 
expectations suggested the Base Rate would peak at around 4% in mid-
2023, however since the recent mini budget the expectation that the rate 
may have to rise to 6% or higher to protect the pound and reduce 
inflationary pressures in the economy. 
 

b. Service Cost Pressures have been identified and are set out in appendix 
2 to the report. The most significant cost pressures in the current year 
relate to the impact of the lower rental income from commercial properties 
and the associated costs of void properties, including St James due to 
delays relating to the installation of a new sub-station, and ongoing 
support for the leisure management contract in the current year.  
 
Future cost pressures include a cost of £1m from 2025-26 for potential 
mandatory food waste collection, offset by 50% government funding, as 
the impact of the Environment Acts on this matter has yet to be 
announced. Plus, the impact of housing growth in the district on the 
demand for waste collection an allowance of £100k from 2024-25 has 
been included in the model.  
 
WSCC – On street parking enforcement contract. The model has assumed 
that the council may lose the contribution to overheads of £186k from 
2024-25, if the Council no longer delivers on this service contract.  

 
c. Future Services Framework (Efficiency Savings) – The remaining 

targets have been revisited and the model reflects the latest position for 
phasing, and a 25% reduction on the savings identified to mitigate risk. 
This savings/income generation programme remains on target. 

Page 35



Appendix 1 
 

 

 
The one-off investment cost for the expansion of the CCS waste service 
approved for 2022-23 has been removed from the model from 2023-24. 
The model assumes the achievement of the target of £1.570m (75%). 
 

d. Council Tax - The Financial Model has an assumed level of Council Tax 
increases at £5 per annum rather than 2%; although it is unclear at 
present whether the £5 increase for low taxing authorities such as 
Chichester will be allowed. The final decision for the Council tax increase 
for 2023-24 will be for Council to determine once the final settlement is 
known.  
 

e. New Homes Bonus (NHB) is currently not used to support the revenue 
budget as this would be contrary to the Council’s key financial principles. 
NHB since 2020-21 has been awarded for one year only rather than the 
previous legacy payments for a four year period. It is anticipated that the 
NHB will be changed as part of any future fundamental Government 
funding review, which may take place in 2025-26.  

 
f. Investment Income – Expectation that long term investments would be 

increased by a further £11m. £3m was invested in the CCLA Diversified 
Income Fund from 1 April 2022 and a further £3m in September 2022, with 
an anticipated return rate of 3% to 3.5%.  

 
A key issue is that nothing has changed on the accounting position for 
pooled funds – movements in fair value will be charged to the General 
Fund from 2023-24 unless the statutory override is extended. The 
investment risk reserve has £1.429m to cover this potential real cost to 
revenue. Due to the volatility in fair value for these types of investments 
currently, and the timing and outcome of the consultation for the statutory 
override may not be known during the budget cycle; it is recommended 
that the investment risk reserve is increased up to £1.457m transferring 
this from the General Fund Reserve in 2022-23. 

 
Returns will depend on the type of asset and fund for any further 
investments – Equity funds (UK and Global) on Arlingclose’s list averaged 
4% return over the past year (ranged 3.17% to 5.39%). Multi-asset funds 
averaged around the same time ranged from 3.25% to 5.08%. 

 
The model reflects the extra income anticipated from the further 
investments undertaken since the budget was set for 2022-23. This 
includes the £3m invested in April, with a further £8m with an assumed 
rate of return of 3.5% which is planned to be invested during the latter part 
of 2022, following completion of due diligence checks for new 
counterparties.  
 

Page 36



Appendix 1 

 

To help mitigate some of the risk, a lower rate of return has been assumed 
in the model, than the expected returns set out by Arlingclose. The timing 
of these additional long-term investments will consider the current situation 
following the Government’s mini budget which has caused some turmoil in 
the markets. 
 

g. Leisure Management Contract – The model reflects the expectation to 
return to SLM’s contractual position from 2023-24 until 2025-26 (the final 
year of the contract). This is a substantial risk in the model as to what 
occurs now and after 2025-26. Effectively, the model reflects the support 
in 2022-23 of £110k already approved by Cabinet, in addition to having 
foregone the management fee of £674,500 when the budget was originally 
set. 

Summary 

Whilst based on the assumptions contained in the model, the Council should be 
able to set a balanced budget for 2023-24 with a forecast small deficit to address. 
This forecast is not without some significant risks in terms of the leisure contract, 
inflationary pressures, and other cost pressures outside of the Council’s control. 
Plus, the forecasts indicate that Council will need to consider future changes to 
bring in a balanced budget from 2025-26 to 2027-28. Taking this position the 
model reflects no new policy options, inflation increases on discretionary income 
streams in line with its fees and charges policy, and the potential maximum 
council tax increase in line with past government council tax referendum criteria. 

In line with the Council’s key financial principles the use of reserves for ongoing 
expenditure is unsustainable, and recurring savings and / or additional income 
will be required to return to a sustainable position. Any additional increases in 
spending or reduction in planned income will exacerbate this position, both in the 
short and medium term. The Council will need to take action to achieve a 
balanced budget over the medium term in line with its key financial principles. 

Based on current projections in the model the Council will need to use reserves 
to balance the budget over the medium term; the Council approved £8m from the 
general fund reserve to support the revenue budget.  

Under the Prudential Code the Council is required to set and monitor treasury 
management prudential indicators in relation to its financial strategy and the 
assumptions being made. 

Forecasts 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Net Revenue Stream 13,971 13,261 14,655 15,041 15,367 
      
Estimated Financing 
Costs to Net 
Revenue Stream 

900 900 900 900 900 

Page 37



Appendix 1 
 

 

Forecasts 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 
 % % % % % 
Estimated Net 
Income from 
Commercial & 
Service Investments 
as % of Net 
Revenue Stream 

6.4 6.8 6.1 6.0 5.9 

 

The income from commercial investments is expected to remain below 10% of 
the Council’s net revenue stream in line with the prudential indicator of 
proportionality for commercial investments. It should be noted that forecasts for 
commercial income levels for 2023-24 and future years are not available at the 
time of writing this strategy. The figures quoted are the best estimates assuming 
no change, which is felt acceptable given the present budgetary intentions of the 
Council. 

4. Beyond 2023-24, the Risks and Opportunities 
 
From 2023-24 there are a number of major changes which may affect the 
assumptions in the 5 year Financial Model, especially in relation to the external 
environment, that present further potential financial risks and instability to the 
Council’s finances: 
 

• The Government’s delayed Funding Review which will assess the financial 
needs for local authorities; the exact timing of this change is still unknown. 
The Business Rates Retention Scheme (BRRS) will also be part of these 
changes. The 5 year Financial Model assumes that the Council will receive 
less government funding in the future (2025-26 assumed), as the funding 
changes are expected to favour higher tier authorities with social care 
responsibilities. 
  

• It is also unknown whether the New Homes Bonus grant will cease before 
these major reforms. Grant payments since 2020-21 have been for one 
year only. 
 

• New BRRS may offer the opportunity to increase funding gained from the 
business rate growth in the longer term. However, in the short term there 
is concern about the resetting of the baseline as the growth achieved to 
date will be lost.  

 
• The impact on the economy and the demand for services as a result of the 

wider economic uncertainty. The Council has a high reliance on its fees 
and charges to balance the budget, especially those that are more volatile 
in any economic downturn. An assessment for future years has been built 
into the five year model. This continues to uncharted territory and only time 
will tell if the estimates are accurate.  

 

Page 38



Appendix 1 

 

• Receipts from Business Rates in are more difficult to predict because of 
what may occur in the next 12 to 18 months. 

 
• In the short term there is still a budgetary risk in relation to the statutory 

override for the accounting treatment for treasury management 
investments under IFRS 9. This override, which means losses on certain 
investments are only recognised if the investment is sold, was given for 5 
years until April 2023. A recent consultation on this matter has yet to be 
concluded by the Government. The Council is currently carrying 
approximately £3m of potential losses due to the uncertainties in the 
market after the recent mini budget. The Investment Risk reserve currently 
holds £1.429m to cover this cost, but the new investments being 
undertake in 2022-23 may have an impact on the adequacy of this 
reserve, as the Council now has £40m in long-term investments. 
Depending on the assessment of fair value risk and SLT’s view of the 
adequacy of the reserve could be increased to £1.478m to £2.886m, 
requiring an adjustment ranging between £0.049m to £1.457m. It is 
recommended that a further £1.457m is transferred from the General Fund 
Reserve to the investment risk reserve in 2022-23. The adequacy of the 
reserve can be reassessed once the outcome of the consultation is known 
regarding the statutory override. 

 
• The impact of any funding reductions from other local authorities or 

funding partners. 
 
• Changes in the Homeless Prevention Grant could result in reduced 

funding from 2025-26 of £163K or under another option a gain of £80k. 
Under either option dampening will occur on the gain or loss during the 
transitional period of 2023-25. 

 
• Potential Industrial Action – CCS. Several Councils in the South East 

region have experienced industrial action by GMB members within their 
refuse teams over recent months. Although such industrial action at CCS 
is not imminent it remains a possibility. Any settlement over the national 
pay award negotiations would increase the structural budget deficit. 

 
• Government Intervention on Energy Costs – Following the recent 

Government announcement on energy support for the non-domestic 
market. The Council’s energy supplier has stated that the support will 
apply to fixed contracts agreed on or after 1 April 2022, as well as to 
deemed, variable and flexible tariffs and contracts. It will apply to energy 
usage from 1 October 2022 to 31 March 2023, running for an initial six-
month period for all non-domestic energy user. This support will impact 
2022-23 only. 

 
• Additional Council Tax on Second Homes – The Government has been 

considering a second home premium of up to 100%, which could generate 

Page 39



Appendix 1 
 

 

extra council tax income. However, this is subject to legislation changes 
which are still being discussed at the committee stage, including the 
scheme design etc. so details are currently unknown. The Council would 
need to approve any introduction of this premium by March 2023, if the 
legislation is in place, for a start date of 1 April 2024. So, whilst this is a 
potential opportunity there is a currently a lack of detail for the timing of 
any legislation nor any scheme details. 

Summary of the Risks / Opportunities 

Risk Probability Impact 
SLM Leisure 
Contract  

High High (TBC) 

Green Waste 
service being 
mandated as free 

Low High (£1.3m) 

Industrial action at 
CCS 

Medium Unknown 

Delayed new long- 
term investments 

High High (£1.4m) 

 

Opportunity Probability Impact 
Government 
Intervention on 
Energy Costs 

Medium Unknown 

Additional Council 
Tax from Second 
Homes 

Medium High (£0.6m) 

 

5. Conclusion 
 
The Financial Strategy and the 5 year Financial Model have been updated for 
cost pressures, income reductions, and any known service changes including any 
decisions agreed by Council since setting the 2022-23 budget.  
 
It also reflects an anticipated reduction in Government funding from 2025-26 due 
to the expected Funding Review and the potential resetting of the Baseline for 
Business Rates. The timing of both major changes to local government funding is 
currently unknown. 
 
The Council’s reliance on fees and charges to help balance the revenue budget 
continues to come under pressure because of post pandemic behavioural change 
and the uncertainty in the local and national economy. The Council must take 
account of changes in people’s behaviour in relation to home working and 
shopping in the high street, both of which have an impact on trends for car park 
income. 

Page 40



Appendix 1 

 

 
Whilst the 5 year Financial Model anticipates that the Council is able to set a 
balanced budget for 2023-24 with a small deficit. There are some significant risks 
associated with some of the key assumptions made, as explained in the strategy, 
which could be detrimental to the forecasts. The situation will continue to be 
updated as greater clarity and information is gained during the budget process for 
the development of the 2023-24 budget, which will be considered by Cabinet and 
Council in February 2023 and March 2023 respectively. 
 
The model currently indicates that there is an underlining shortfall of 
approximately £565k to £467k during the period of 2025-26 through to 2027-28, 
which the Council will need to address.  
 
Considering the key risks set out in this strategy it will be imperative for the 
Council to refresh the FSF prioritisation tool after the May 2023 elections to 
identify where future savings or income generation opportunities can help 
mitigate the forecast deficit. 
 
The Council is legally required to set a balanced annual budget, any shortfall in 
the short to medium term will need to be considered and addressed in line with 
the key financial principles, and the key corporate plan objective for prudent and 
effective financial management. The use of reserves to balance the budget is not 
prudent or sustainable unless there is a carefully managed plan to steer the 
budget back towards being balanced without the use of reserves in the long term.  
 
 

Page 41



Annex A 

 

Key Financial Principles  

Linked to the Corporate Plan objectives are the Key Financial Principles that underpin the Council’s Financial Planning approach as 
set out in the table below. 

Principle Narrative Actions 
Key Financial Principles   
1. All key decisions of the 

Council should relate 
back to the Corporate 
Plan. 

Corporate Plan: 
• Is the driver for our decision making, including the allocation of 

resources, and sets the Council’s work plan.  
• The objectives of the Corporate Plan for Finance are 

underpinned by the Council’s Financial Strategy, Treasury 
Management and Investment Strategies and  the Capital 
Strategy. 

• Discretionary service priorities are assessed against the 
prioritisation tool developed as part of the Future Services 
Framework (FSF). 

• The Corporate Plan is reviewed for performance against targets 
and outcomes.  

• A resources statement details one off funding available for 
investment in new and emerging projects for corporate planning.  

• The affordability role of finance in the corporate planning process 
has evolved into an assessment of what resources are required 
to deliver the emerging Corporate Plan projects, whilst 
maintaining efficient, high-quality services (where possible), 
using both the Resources Statement and the rolling 5 year 
Model. 
 

  
 

• Regular monitoring and reporting 
against the key targets and 
milestones by the Strategic 
Leadership Team (SLT) and 
members.  

• New and emerging issues and 
service requirements will be 
considered by SLT and members 
during strategy planning events 
aided by the Future Services 
Framework as approved by 
Council on 21 July 2020.   

• Members may have to make 
difficult decisions about service 
provision and competing priorities 
to achieve a balanced budget. 

2. Ensure the revenue 
budget and capital 
programme remain 
balanced and sustainable 

• It’s a legal requirement to set a balanced revenue budget and to 
ensure the capital & asset replacement programmes are fully 
resourced.  

• 5 year financial model is updated 
regularly in year to aid financial 
planning for senior officers and 
members.  

P
age 42



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
over a rolling 5 year 
period. 

• The Statement of Resource Allocation demonstrates that the 
capital & asset replacement programmes remain affordable.  

• Minimum level of General Fund reserves currently set at £4m. 
The appropriateness of this is assessed by the Corporate 
Governance & Audit Committee (CG&AC). 

• £8m has been set aside to support the revenue budget over the 
medium term for recovery after the Covid pandemic. (Council 
July 2020). 

• The 5 year financial strategy model updated for strategic 
financial planning for the medium term, underpinning the 
development of the forthcoming financial year’s annual budget. 

• The CG&AC assessment of the minimum level of reserves at 
their autumn meeting, with their recommendations being made 
to the next Cabinet meeting. 

• Future Government funding is uncertain with the expected 
changes and timing of the Funding Review, and the localisation 
of Business Rates unknown. Plus, the impact of any fiscal 
statements or Spending Reviews in the coming year. 

• It’s currently unclear whether the financial settlement for 2023-24 
will be for one year only or a multi-year allocation. Provisional 
details are expected from the Government in December 2022. 
 

 

• Cabinet and all Group Leaders 
are given regular briefings on the 
financial position throughout the 
year.  

• Other political groups are also 
briefed on the current financial 
situation as part of the recovery 
plan, along with regular review by 
the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  

• Senior managers will continue to 
monitor the delivery of the FSF 
Recovery Plan.  

• Quarterly in year budget 
monitoring for revenue and 
capital schemes undertaken and 
reported to all members on the 
Modern.gov website. 

• CG&AC annual review of the 
minimum level of reserves. 

• To update the 5 year model in 
light of any future Government 
Funding changes once 
information becomes available 
regarding future settlements, or 
on the Business Rates Retention 
Scheme. 

• SLT & members to develop 
options for an action plan to 
address any funding gaps. 
 

 

P
age 43



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
3. Over the next five years 
return the Council to a 
position of non-
dependency on reserves. 

• To adhere to the legal requirement of a balanced budget it is 
essential that the Council returns to a balance budget without 
reliance on reserves, which is unsustainable in the long term. 

• £8m was set aside in July 2020 by Council to support the 
revenue budget and to protect public services, during the phased 
approach for delivering the COVID Recovery Plan of efficiency 
savings and income generation achieved the target of £1.570m. 

• Risk mitigation taken includes realistic targets under the 
recovery plan as only 75% of the savings identified built into the 
5  year financial model. 

• Minimum level of general fund reserve reviewed annually. 
• Resources statement to identify commitments and new 

resources updated and reviewed regularly by members and 
senior officers.  

• Annual contribution for the Asset Replacement Programme 
funding built into budget, and programme reviewed and updated 
regularly. 

• Repairs and maintenance budgets in base budget to maintain 
council buildings rather than use of reserves. 

• Similarly, other recurring items still funded from reserves must 
be built into future revenue budgets.  

• Financial Services capital accountant co-ordinates a full review 
of the existing asset base of the council with divisional and 
service managers to identify and assess the need to reinvest in 
our existing essential assets. This is updated annually to ensure 
the current asset base remains affordable over the long term. 

• Monitor the Recovery plan, and 
the availability of reserves.  

• Regular updates on the 5 year 
model reviewed by SLT and 
Members. 

• Resources statement reviewed 
and updated for strategic 
financial planning and the annual 
budget cycle. 

• These need to be considered 
regularly in the context of the 5 
year model with the aim to 
achieve a balanced budget 
without use of reserves by 2027-
28.  

• To build future demands for 
recurring expenditure into the 5 
year Financial Model, and 
thereby into any potential savings 
target.  

• To avoid funding recurring 
expenditure from reserves as a 
key financial principle.  

• Annual review of asset 
replacement programme with 
responsible service/budget 
managers by Financial Services. 

 
4. To maintain a balanced 
budget in a climate of 
reduced 
funding/inflationary 
pressures, savings in the 
revenue budget or external 

To achieve some certainty about capital and revenue funding before 
entering into new commitments the Council has: 

• Robust project management processes to ensure the full 
consequences of embarking on projects are known and 
understood from the outset for both revenue and capital.  
The whole life costs of the project must be considered. 

 
• All Project Initiation Documents 

(PIDs) are to be based on whole 
life costs and include an exit 
strategy. 

P
age 44



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
funding will need to be 
identified before any new 
revenue expenditure, 
including capital 
expenditure that has 
revenue consequences, or 
any reduction in planned 
income is approved. 

• An assessment of affordability, prudence and proportionality 
of the Council’s Capital Programme should be undertaken in 
respect of the financial capacity and risks of major/significant 
projects before the commencement of the project (must be 
part of the project’s PID) and maintained over the life of the 
project’s risk register.  

• New investment proposals should be linked to the Corporate 
Plan and Capital Strategy are assessed to ensure that they 
represent value for money and achieve corporate outcomes. 

• Projects dependent on matched funding the terms and 
conditions must be fully understood and agreed by Council 
and the potential financial risks identified for noncompliance 
on the conditions set. 

• Projects should only proceed once all funding has been 
secured, and the conditions have been assessed and 
evaluated.  

• The relevant service must consider, in advance, any costs 
that may arise at the end of the project and prepare an exit 
strategy so that the full consequences are known in advance.  
Whole life costing should be used.   

• Copies of all funding agreements should be sent to the 
Financial Services Division to ensure all possible future 
liabilities are considered with documentation retained for 
accounting purposes and external audit review. 

 
 

• Adherence to the Council’s 
Project Management procedures, 
and Risk Management Strategy 
and Policy.  

• Projects assessed against the 
FSF prioritisation tool for Capital. 

• Where new spending priorities or 
income reduction are to be 
introduced into the revenue 
budget, corresponding savings or 
additional income / funding will 
need to be identified. 

 
 
 

5. Review costs in 
response to changes in 
service demands. 

• The call upon council services is fluctuating more during a period 
of economic and financial uncertainty.   

• Whilst short-term variances in demand can be accommodated, 
any longer term trends, i.e. beyond one year, will require the 
Council to respond by redirecting its resources in line with 
changes in demand.   

In year monitoring and during the annual 
budget process: 

• Essential services that 
experience an increase in 
demand will be recognised and 
supported.   

• Where there is an on-going 
reduction in demand beyond one-

P
age 45



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
• This is a key principle as future changes in demand on services 

are bound to occur.  
• Prioritising the Council’s services will enable scarce resources to 

be directed to areas of need and priority over the medium term. 
 

year resources should be 
reviewed to realign resource 
allocation. 

6. Where the Council has 
discretion over charging 
for services, consideration 
needs to be given as to the 
extent to which service 
users should bear the 
costs, and the proportion, 
if any, that should be met 
by Council Tax. 

• The Council has an approved Fees & Charges Policy (Cabinet 
December 2020) and has limited discretion in setting fees and 
charges for some services. 

• The approach for fees and charges setting being in line with the 
Council’s policy, which is to provide the best overall value for 
residents, businesses, and the community. 
 

• Key principles of the policy are: 
- the user should pay the full cost for discretionary services 
unless there is a clear approved policy reason not to do so. 
- As a minimum, services should aim to break even  
- Services should have regard to community needs for services    
and affordability  
- Fees and charges will increase in line with the assumed 
inflation rate stated in this Financial Strategy as a minimum, 
unless the market or benchmarking indicates charges could be 
accommodate a higher increase.  
  

 
 
 

 

• As a minimum fees and charges 
are increased in line with the 
assumed inflation rate in the 
Financial Strategy, 

• Service managers to consider 
their fees & charges in advance 
of the start of each financial year.   

• Any individual services operating 
at a deficit should aim to break 
even unless there is an approved 
policy to support their on-going 
subsidy. This should be based on 
the whole cost of delivering the 
service, including use of assets.  

• Under the policy some services 
will be charged at a commercial 
rate, whereas others may be 
subsidised to encourage their 
use. 

• New fees and charges should be 
agreed as part of the annual 
budget process where possible. 

 
7. Continue to review the 
Council’s costs to find 
further savings. 

The Council has a proven track record for identifying and achieving 
efficiencies and new income generation targets to protect services to the 
community. 
 

• The current FSF recovery plan is still expecting to achieve a total 
target of £1.570m by 2024-25, the phasing of the remaining 

 
• To achieve the remaining target 

of the £1.570m efficiencies 
detailed in the Recovery Plan 
(approved July 2020). 

P
age 46



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
balance not in 2022-23 Base Budget is reflected in the 5 year 
model. 

• To address any funding gap services will seek to identify further 
service efficiencies or service provision changes whilst ensuring 
services are effective and support community need. 

• The focus is to ensure services are delivered to an appropriate 
standard at a competitive unit cost.  

• Aside from formal service reviews, service managers should 
normally be considering the best and most cost-effective 
procurement methods in their service areas. 
 

 

• To consider options to balance 
the revenue budget funding gap 
indicated in the 5 year model, 
with immediate oversight by SLT. 

• To use the FSF prioritisation 
model to aid decisions on service 
changes or efficiencies.  

 
 

8. Match Council Tax 
increases to a realistic and 
affordable base budget.   

To protect services the Council will: 
• The Financial Strategy will reflect the most beneficial increase in 

Council Tax over the next 5 years, whilst accepting that such an 
objective may be impacted by national government policy.   

• For 2022-23 district councils were permitted to raise their council 
tax by the higher of the 2% or £5, which aids those with a low tax 
base. In effect this rule change has permitted this council, since 
it has one of the lowest Council Tax levels, to increase its 
Council Tax by £5. 

 
The Government will confirm what rules will apply for 2023-24 in early 
December. 
 

 
• The 5 year model reflects the 

highest increase assumed before 
triggering a referendum under the 
Government’s threshold criteria. 

• The model will be updated as 
necessary once the 
Government’s criteria is known 
for the forthcoming financial 
year(s). 

• Full Council will decide the actual 
Council tax increase at its March 
budget setting meeting. 

9. Budgets should be 
pooled with other service 
providers to achieve more 
effective and cost-efficient 
outcomes for the 
community. 

• The Council has a track record for working with other agencies 
and key strategic partners to maximise its ability to meet 
strategic outcomes under the Corporate Plan and achieve 
community outcomes.  

• It is important that strategic objectives and community outcomes 
are agreed from the outset when partnerships are formed so that 
the achievement of results can be measured and reported to 

• Key strategic partnership risks 
are considered by the Corporate 
Governance & Audit Committee 

• Outcomes from joint working 
arrangements and other 
agencies are considered by the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

P
age 47



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
members to ensure public funds are being used in the most 
efficient way to achieve greatest impact for the community.  

 

• Exit strategies must be in place 
as part of the agreements. 

10. New Homes Bonus 
(NHB) This should be 
allocated annually, and 
only committed once 
received. 

• As NHB is not ring-fenced the Council has flexibility to choose 
how it wants to use this source of funding. 

• Previous Government advice was that NHB was expected to 
help “reward” communities that have taken housing growth. 

• Furthermore, it was expected that councils consult with their 
communities on its use, and in areas where there is a national 
park as the planning authority, to also consult with the park 
authority. 

• NHB can be used to help balance the revenue budget in the 
short term only since the grant is for one year only.   

• The Council has reserved the NHB grant for community and 
other uses once it has been received. In the past it has been 
used to help reward communities by funding one off projects. 

 
 
 

• The NHB is to be reserved for 
community and other uses after it 
has been received.  

• To keep this funding under 
review considering any 
fundamental changes in future 
Government Funding proposals. 

• To review annually during the 
annual budget if this funding 
source is required to aid setting a 
balanced budget. 

• The Grants and Concessions 
Panel review the use of NHB, 
along with other grant funding 
that the Council makes available 
to individuals and groups. 

P
age 48



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
11. Localisation of 
Business Rates. We 
should review the decision 
to pool our business rates 
annually after receipt of 
the government draft 
settlement to ensure that 
the Council is in the best 
possible financial position. 

• The pooling of Business Rates is considered by the West 
Sussex Chief Finance Officer’s Group annually, when the 
Government consultation is launched. 

• Some of the authorities in West Sussex operated a pool in 2022-
23. To maximise the gain to the County as a whole, several 
districts did not form part of the pool, including Chichester 
District Council (CDC). However, all West Sussex authorities are 
currently able to benefit from the pool gains. 

• For 2023-24 the same pool arrangements are being proposed as 
those operated for 2022-23, subject to the outcome of the 
provisional settlement when authorities will assess if the 
arrangement remains beneficial to all. 

 
(Authorities that do not form a pool are protected by individual 
government “safety nets” while those in a pool are not). 
 

• The business case for pooling 
shall be reviewed annually 
considering the potential risk 
associated with being in a pool. 

Resources and Capital Programme Principles 
A. Capital receipts, 
reserves, and interest on 
investments (other than 
property and multi bond 
investments) will primarily 
be available for new 
investment of a non-
recurring nature, thereby 
minimising the overall 
financial risk. 
Income earned from 
property investments, both 
directly owned and 
managed property, and the 
Local Authority Property 
Fund, together with mixed 
asset bonds, can be used 

• This is a long-established principle whereby non-recurring 
resources are used to meet non-recurring expenditure.  

• The revenue budget should not be reliant on reserves for 
recurring expenditure which is contrary to the key financial 
principle 4.  

• Interest receipts are diverted to support the capital programme 
except for the Local Authority Property Fund (LAPF) related 
income and the long term multi asset bond investments. 

• Temporary sources of funding must not be relied upon to fund 
recurring revenue costs. 
 
 

• Budget managers embarking on 
new projects that involve 
temporary funding must design 
an exit strategy from the outset to 
ensure the council is not left with 
unfunded costs at the end of the 
funding stream. 

• Adhere to the Council’s project 
management processes. 

• All new projects proposals are 
assessed against the FSF 
prioritisation for Capital/Projects 
or the Investment Protocol. 

P
age 49



Annex A 
 

 

Principle Narrative Actions 
to support revenue as the 
income streams earned are 
much less volatile.  
B.  Ensure that a sufficient 
level of reserves is 
maintained, as informed by 
the Financial Strategy, so 
that the Council can 
remain flexible and is able 
to respond to a changing 
local government 
environment. 

The key outcome in meeting the Corporate Plan’s objective of financial 
resilience is: 
 

• To maintain the minimum level of reserves to offer resilience 
against the unexpected costs and provide resources for new 
initiatives including one-off costs to assist with reshaping the 
organisation.  

• The 5 year Capital/Projects and Asset Replacement 
Programmes are an estimate of the schemes’ likely cost, with 
funding resources reflected in the Resources Statement to meet 
the need.  

• The capital programme is by its nature constantly changing and 
the resource position will be continuously monitored to ensure it 
remains affordable.   

• The Resources Statement reflects the current level of reserves, 
anticipated receipts, and commitments, and this is updated 
alongside the 5 year financial plan. 

• Routine monitoring of the capital 
schemes and the overall 
resources position will continue 
to ensure the capital programme 
remains affordable.  

• All earmarked reserves will be 
reviewed annually with service 
managers to ensure that they 
remain relevant and essential, 
otherwise the funds should be 
returned to available balances. 

 

 

P
age 50



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Reserves at April 2022 66.908

Less commitments:

Insurance Fund -0.266

Provision for one off redundancies -0.014

Minimum level of reserves -4.000

Other earmarked funding

Reserve commitments  - Revenue -24.951 -29.231

COVID-19 Recovery report - Support to revenue account -8.000

Less contingent liability:

LEP Grant -5.000

Available Resources - Beginning of Year 24.677 16.215 7.590 7.874 8.041 8.843

New Resources

Asset Sales Achieved @ 96% 0.000

Interest on investments (excluding property & all external funds) 0.042 0.089 0.124 0.119 0.123 0.116

NHBS Grant 1.461 1.306 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Lower Tier Support Grant 0.096 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Revenue contribution to Asset Replacement Fund 1.429 1.524 1.524 1.524 1.524 1.524

Revenue contribution to Reserves 2020/21 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

External income due to support capital programme (incl CIL) 10.749 10.310 4.272 13.208 4.550 6.600

Interest on repayment of SLM advance 0.225 0.222 0.218 0.215 0.225 0.000

Sub Total - New Resources 14.002 13.451 6.138 15.066 6.422 8.240

Resources Applied

Current Capital Projects -20.442 -16.648 -4.514 -13.437 -4.550 -6.600

Current Asset Replacements -2.022 -5.428 -1.340 -1.463 -1.070 -2.551

Sub Total - Resources Applied -22.464 -22.076 -5.854 -14.900 -5.620 -9.151

Available Resources - End of Year 16.215 7.590 7.874 8.041 8.843 7.932

NHBG Balance Beginning of Year 15.735 12.927 11.630 11.630 11.630 11.630

Less Transfer to NHB Grants Fund -0.250 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Revised NHBG Balance Beginning of Year 15.485 12.927 11.630 11.630 11.630 11.630

NHBG New Resources

NHBS Grant 1.461 1.306 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Lower Tier Support Grant 2021/22 0.096 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Sub Total - NHBG New Resources 1.557 1.306 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

NHBG Resources Applied

Current Capital Projects -3.875 -2.603 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Reserve Commitments - Revenue -0.240 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Sub Total - NHBG Resources Applied -4.115 -2.603 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

NHBG Available Resources - End of Year 12.927 11.630 11.630 11.630 11.630 11.630

Council Resource Position as at 30 September 2022 (Projected)

Period 2021/22 to 2026/27

Note: The table above includes New Homes Bonus Grant (NHBG) up to and including 2022/23 and Lower Tier Suport Grant for 2021/22 . Any grant 

received from 2023/24 that is not applied to support the revenue account will therefore increase the level of Uncommitted Resources.

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Approval of Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Development Management Planning Performance Agreements
	CABINET							 	1 November 2022
	Development Management Division
	Planning Performance Agreements

	6 Land at Western End of Terminus Road, Chichester
	Cabinet				      				           1 November 2022
	Land at Western End of Terminus Road
	12.	Background Papers

	Land at Western End of Terminus Road, Chichester - Appendix

	7 Financial Strategy and Plan 2023-24 to 2027-28
	CABINET                                                                              1 November 2022
	Financial Strategy and Plan 2023-24 to 2027-28
	13.	Background Papers

	Financial Strategy and Plan 2023-24 to 2027-28 - Appendix 1
	Financial Strategy and Plan 2023-24 to 2027-28 - Appendix 2 (PART II)
	Financial Strategy and Plan 2023-24 to 2027-28 - Appendix 3

	10 Leisure Management Contract Review

